Putting our customers and communities frst.

2017 Annual Report

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc. is the holding company for FirstCapital
Bank of Texas, N.A., an independent community bank with 10 branches:
two each in Amarillo and in Lubbock, four in Midland and one each in
Horseshoe Bay and in Marble Falls. FirstCapital Bank was chartered in
November 1998 and First Bancshares was formed on February 1, 2002.
FirstCapital Bank presently employs more than 200 team members
across its four markets. We also have an accomplished and well-respected
board of directors, as well as offcers who provide expertise in felds
such as real estate, oil and gas, and medicine.
Working toward a common vision of “Making Every Customer’s Dream
a Reality,” FirstCapital Bank of Texas and our team members exemplify
that vision in every interaction we have with our customers by honoring
our promise, “You above all.” We focus primarily on providing a broad
range of fnancial services to small and medium-size businesses and
retail fnancial services to the owners and employees of those businesses.
We also have a strong mortgage lending presence in all of the markets
we serve.
An employer of choice, FirstCapital Bank of Texas was recognized by
American Banker as the #1 Best Bank to Work For in Texas and #3 in
the nation.

FirstCapital Bank of Texas is the

#1 best bank to work for in Texas
and the

#3 best in the nation.

1

A

M E S S A G E

F R O M

K E N

B U R G E S S

FirstCapital Bank of Texas puts people frst.
Welcome to our frst published annual report. We view it as our opportunity

to share with you the work of some of our great team members and how
they support the communities we serve and people we help. This publication
couldn’t come at a better time. The banking industry has been under attack
since the fnancial crisis and many of our fellow community banks have been
severely damaged in the past few years. It is important that we tell the many
stories of how our community banks support, and meet the many needs of,
communities here and around the country. We have a great team and I am
proud of each and every one of them for what they do – and in 2017,
they did quite a bit.

The past year has been an eventful one.
After opening the Horseshoe Bay branch
in late 2016, our Hill Country team worked
hard all year building and growing the
Horseshoe Bay market. In late 2017, the
bank purchased a Marble Falls branch
bank from Independent Bank in McKinney,
allowing us to expand our footprint into the
Marble Falls community just a few miles
down the road from Horseshoe Bay. We
welcomed new members to our team and
they have become outstanding teammates.
In late 2017, we received approval from our
bank regulatory body to open a new branch
in Fredericksburg, located about 60 miles
from Horseshoe Bay. Fredericksburg has
many of the characteristics of our other Hill
Country markets and will be a great addition
to our development in this part of the state.
We hope to open in Fredericksburg in the
summer of 2018.
Also in late 2017, we opened a new branch
in the southwest part of Lubbock. This is
our second branch in Lubbock and will help
us serve that market better. Southwest
Lubbock is the fastest growing section of
that community and we expect big things
from the team running this branch.
In 2016, as the bank began approaching $1
billion in assets, our board of directors and

management team recognized that to better
meet the fnancial and regulatory challenges
that come with crossing the $1 billion
asset threshold, we needed to speed up
our growth. We further determined that
such growth could not be achieved with
organic growth alone. It would need to be
supplemented with an acquisition strategy.
In 2017, we began taking steps to implement
this new strategy. We began working with an
investment banking frm to locate potential
acquisition targets and embarked on a
capital raising effort to make sure we had
adequate funding to execute an acquisition
when identifed. Our goal was to raise $25
million, but we closed the offering at $45
million and still had signifcant unmet
demand. While we regretted turning many
away, we were very happy with the show
of support for our future vision.
We believe that our vision, and our
responsibility to our industry, does not end
at our state borders. I have been fortunate
the past two years to serve in leadership
roles with the American Bankers Association
and am serving as the chairman this year.
This has afforded our bank the opportunity
to play a leadership role in the development
of policy for our industry and to work on the
rollback of some of the very detrimental
compliance burden that has made it hard for
many community banks to stay in business.
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I had the opportunity to meet directly
with President Trump in the West Wing in
February 2017 to discuss these regulatory
burdens and to testify before the House
Financial Institutions subcommittee about
the same.
When we started the bank in November of
1998, I don’t think any of us envisioned the
journey on which we were about to embark.
We just kept putting one foot in front of the
other, walking down the path toward the
destination for which we were intended. The
journey has not been without its challenges
at times, but it has always been fulflling and
continues to be proftable to all.
As we enter into our 20th year, we have a
great team and great markets and are more
than ready to continue to do all we can to
support the communities that make our
state the greatest in the nation.
Sincerely,

Kenneth L. Burgess Jr.
Chairman

We are
family.
“We have a great
team and I am
proud of each and
every one of them.”

“Our great team
members support
communities
we serve.”

We serve people.

Our branch network is strong – and growing.

Mortgage operations that open doors.

In 2017, FCB Texas expanded our presence in both new and
established markets. Our frst Hill Country branch opened in
Horseshoe Bay in 2016 and attracted customers from Marble
Falls, just a few miles away. Recognizing the need for our brand
of people-frst banking in this community, we invested in our
Marble Falls branch in 2017; a third Hill Country branch in
Fredericksburg is under way and should open by mid-2018.
We also invested in markets that have traditionally been FCB
Texas strongholds, opening a second branch in Lubbock this
year. With the opening of our Milwaukee Avenue branch, which
is led by a seasoned local banker, we’re poised to continue our
growth in this high-potential market by doing what we do best:
serving our customers.

Despite a tough regulatory environment, this year was one
of renewal and growth for our mortgage operations. With a
strong lending team — and a powerful superior service position
in place, we ramped up our mortgage marketing, sales and
operations efforts. Our goal: to put even more qualifed borrowers
into homes of their own.
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Technology that’s a frst for our customers –
and our peers.
In 2017, our interactive teller platform attracted more FCB Texas customers
than ever, as well as the attention of our community bank peers across
the country. Known as TellerConnect, this innovative technology (a frst
in Texas) enables customers to interact with a teller via live video outside
of traditional banking hours. We’ve incorporated TellerConnect into all
FCB Texas branches, both new and existing, making us a great place for
others in our industry to visit when looking to introduce this technology
to their customers.

Building the businesses that build our
local economy.

Advocating for sustainable, fnancially viable
communities.

At FCB Texas, we’ve been committed to building local businesses
since we frst opened our doors back in 1998. That commitment
continued in 2017, despite a lending environment that left many
of our peers unable to provide the fnancing our communities
need to grow and prosper. While we too felt the impact of the
downturn in the oil and gas industries, we still fnished the year
with a loan growth of 12% – with the overwhelming majority of
these loans made to the businesses that remain the lifeblood of
our local economy.

Chairman Ken Burgess remains at the forefront of the banking
industry, advocating for legislation that will enable FCB Texas and
our colleague banks to both meet the needs of our customers
and build sustainable, fnancially viable communities, while
keeping our business models strong. In 2017, Ken was elected
chairman of the American Bankers Association, after serving as
chairman of the Texas Bankers Association.
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We change lives.
We help build homes.
Habitat for Humanity has long been an important partner for the bank.
We admire the program for their education efforts as well as belief
that their homeowners should have “sweat equity” in their home. Over
the years, all of our markets have been active in helping build Habitat
homes — and our Midland market even donated a tract of land to the
Midland Habitat for Humanity that is being built into a neighborhood.
Our favorite street? The one named Capital Lane in our honor.

We never forget what’s really important.
The Alzheimer’s Association holds personal signifcance to several
of our team members and many of them are involved with the West
Texas Chapter of the Alzheimer’s Association in Midland, some at
the board member level. While the Association has a walk that raises
money for Alzheimer’s research, the board felt they could do more.
FCB Texas team member Robin Richey was part of the driving force
behind An Evening to Remember, a black-tie dinner featuring
a notable speaker, which has raised signifcant dollars for the
Alzheimer’s Association.
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We forge connections.
The Horseshoe Bay Business Alliance is a 501(c) nonproft entity that
keeps the business community members and residents connected
and promotes quality of life for residents of the Highland Lakes area.
One of our team members is president of the board and many others
volunteer with the organization, which hosts a variety of community
events, from small monthly community coffees to a large concert
series – even a free paper shred day!

We build brighter fnancial futures.
As bankers, we understand the importance of fnancial literacy. Passing
these valuable life skills down to future generations is vitally important
and can change the life trajectory of a child. FCB Texas has a rich
history of teaching fnancial literacy in all of our markets. Our Midland
market has a nine-year partnership with Bonham Elementary School
that takes a new shape each year based on the needs of the school,
teachers and students. We have had students tour the bank, mentored
one on one, taught entire classrooms and even delivered the American
Bankers Association’s “Teach Children to Save” curriculum to the
entire school. In addition to how we serve in the classroom, we always
hold our annual Bonham Christmas event for the entire school: students,
faculty and families.

We lead the way.
Working with the United Way and its 23 local partner agencies in
Lubbock, we helped improve the lives of 200,000 neighbors this year
alone. Our team members across West Texas pledged $67,000 in
support of our United Way campaign. FCB Texas’ support of the
campaign didn’t stop there, though; we donated our time and talent,
too. A number of our leadership team members held board positions
and other active roles through the United Way as well as with its
partner agencies – including serving on the board of The Early
Learning Centers, the largest local benefciary. Together, we worked
to create more prosperous lives and communities for us all — for
today and tomorrow.
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We recognize that by ensuring the well-being
of our community, we ensure our own success.

$1.110 billion

.82% return

$8.671 million

+2 new
branches

14.7%
year-over-year

4.18% YTD

in total assets

on assets

opened in 2017

increase in net income
before taxes

7.72% return

$777.5 million

on equity

in gross loans
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in net income

average net
interest margin

82.67%

loan-to-deposit ratio

Financial Overview
Net Income ($ in thousands)
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Return on average assets (ROA) of .82% for year ended December
31, 2017 was also negatively impacted by the writedown of the
DTA in response to the Tax Act. ROA exclusive of the effects of
this writedown and other tax items would have been .96% for year
ended December 31, 2017. Comparatively, ROA for the year ended
December 31, 2016 was .88%. Return on common average tangible
equity (ROE) was similarly impacted by the DTA writedown. ROE
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was 7.72% and
9.30%, respectively. Exclusive of the effects of the DTA writedown
and other tax items, ROE would have been 9.11%.

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc. (the “Company”) reported net income
of $8.7 million and net income available to common shareholders
of $8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to
net income of $8.7 million and net income available to common
shareholders of $8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.
The Company recognized a $2.0 million writedown of our deferred
tax asset (“DTA”) in response to enactment of the Tax Cut and Jobs
Act (“Tax Act”), which negatively impacted 2017 net income. The
amount of the writedown is expected to be recovered during 2018
from tax savings resulting from the Tax Act as federal corporate
rates declined from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018. Income
before income taxes increased 14.7% to $14.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017 from $12.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016.
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Gross loans at December 31, 2017 were $777.5 million, a 12%
increase over $693.8 million for December 31, 2016. Loan-todeposit ratio (net of loans held for sale) for the Company was
82.67% and 84.52% at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Assets, Deposits & Loans
($ in thousands)

Total deposits increased 14.5% ending December 31, 2017 at
$939.5 million compared to $819.9 million at December 31, 2016.
Noninterest-bearing deposits rose 20.2% to $308.9 million at
December 31, 2017 from $257.1 million at December 31, 2016.
The Company purchased a branch in Marble Falls, Texas in the
third quarter of 2017. The transaction garnered roughly $20 million
in additional deposits.

$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000

The rise in total deposits served to push the Company over $1 billion
in assets. Total assets were $1.110 billion at December 31, 2017
compared to $958 million at December 31, 2016.

$400,000

Stockholders’ equity increased by 42%, to $141.7 million at
December 31, 2017 from $99.5 million at December 31, 2016.
The Company engaged in a stock offering in the third quarter of
2017, which resulted in a sale of 3,000,000 shares of stock for net
issuance proceeds of $42.9 million. In the fourth quarter of 2017,
the Company retired 100% of its remaining preferred stock at a cost
of $8.8 million. Wholly owned subsidiary, FirstCapital Bank of Texas,
N.A. (the “Bank”), is well capitalized under regulatory guidelines.
At December 31, 2017, the Bank’s Tier 1 Leverage Ratio was 9.76%.
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Net interest income was $41.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017, a 7% increase over $38.8 million for year
ended December 31, 2016. Net interest margin was 4.18% and
4.19% for December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively.

2016

Loans

2017
Deposits

Net Interest Income
and Interest Expense
($ in thousands)

The Company recorded a $1.0 million provision for loan losses for
the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $2.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2016. The year-over-year decrease
was primarily related to improvements in the composition of our
loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2017
decreased to 1.64% of total loans compared to 1.76% at December
31, 2016. In management’s opinion, the allowance is appropriate
and is derived from consistent application of the methodology for
establishing reserves for the loan portfolio.

$42,000
$36,000
$30,000
$24,000
$18,000

Noninterest income was $4.1 million and $3.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, an increase of 5.5%.

$12,000

Noninterest expense was $30.0 million and $27.4 million for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,
an increase of 9.7%. Increases were centered in salary and
benefts and occupancy refecting both an increase in branches
(Horseshoe Bay, third quarter of 2016; Marble Falls, third quarter
of 2017, and a second Lubbock branch, fourth quarter of 2017)
and increased personnel to prepare for the heavier regulatory
burden upon crossing the $1 billion in assets threshold.

$6,000
0
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Net Interest Income
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2016

2017

Interest Expense

First Bancshares
of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Financial Statements
and Report of Independent Auditors
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share and per share data)
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Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

750 North Saint Paul Street, Suite 850
Dallas, Texas 75201-3236
Tel +1 214 777 5200
Fax +1 214 777 5202
www.crowehorwath.com

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and the Board of Directors of First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Midland, Texas
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition of First Bancshares of
Texas, Inc. (the "Company") as of December 31, 2017, the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
The financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2016, were audited by other auditors whose
report dated March 3, 2017, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Crowe Horwath LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2017.
Midland, Texas
March 28, 2018

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share and per share data)
2017

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold

$

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest-bearing deposits in banks
Securities available for sale
Securities held to maturity (fair value is $95,561
and $116,409 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively)
Restricted investments carried at cost
Loans held for sale
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $12,799 and
$12,194 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
Premises and equipment, net
Deferred tax asset, net
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Core deposit intangible
Other assets
Total assets

$

2016

20,794
7,838

$

12,014
10,000

28,632

22,014

91,484
68,968

72,057
21,658

96,419
2,202
828

117,040
2,195
791

763,865
22,730
3,205
23,981
406
7,684

680,802
21,567
4,307
8,419
6,985

1,110,404

$

957,835

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing

308,913
630,608

257,066
562,877

Total deposits

939,521

819,943

17,614
4,529
3,093
3,977

26,348
4,626
500
3,093
3,782

968,734

858,292

-

883

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank
Note payable
Subordinated debentures
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders' Equity
Preferred stock, $1 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;
0 and 882,544 shares issued and outstanding in
2017 and 2016, respectively; total liquidation value of
$0 and $8,825 in 2017 and 2016, respectively
Common stock, $1 par value; 15,000,000 shares authorized;
12,599,255 and 9,530,029 shares issued and outstanding
in 2017 and 2016, respectively
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

12,599
73,198
56,670
(19)
(778)

Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

9,530
40,502
48,368
260

141,670
$

1,110,404

99,543
$

957,835

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share and per share data)
2017
Interest Income
Loans, including fees
Debt securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Federal funds sold
Deposits in other banks
Other

$

Total interest income
Interest Expense
Deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank
Note payable
Subordinated debentures
Total interest expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses
Noninterest Income
Trust department income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Gain on sales of loans
Other income
Total noninterest income
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Advertising
IT and data processing
Professional fees
FDIC assessment
(Gain) loss and write-downs on sale of foreclosed assets
Other expenses
Total noninterest expense
Income Before Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes
Net Income

$

Preferred stock dividends
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2016

39,842

$

2,584
1,229
85
1,725
122

2,617
1,251
43
651
327

45,587

42,167

3,756
85
69
18
127

2,847
370
62
8
112

4,055

3,399

41,532

38,768

1,000

2,548

40,532

36,220

501
1,234
920
938
463

392
1,096
745
1,354
259

4,056

3,846

18,598
4,494
823
972
1,444
545
(2)
3,158

16,420
4,130
788
927
1,303
502
(2)
3,308

30,032

27,376

14,556

12,690

5,885

4,020

8,671

$

463
$

37,278

8,208

8,670
678

$

7,992

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income (Continued)
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share and per share data)
2017
Per Share Data:
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2016

0.79
0.79

0.84
0.84

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
2016

2017
Net Income

$

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Change in unrealized gains on investment securities
available for sale, before tax
Less reclassification adjustment for realized gains
included in net income, before tax

Other comprehensive loss

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$

$

8,670

(324)

(1,378)

Tax effect

Comprehensive Income

8,671

-

-

468

110

(910)

(214)

7,761

$

8,456

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Common
Stock
Balance, January 1, 2016
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Dividends accrued
Exercise of stock options
Retirement of preferred stock
Sales of treasury stock
Shares issued in employee
stock purchase plan
Stock-based compensation

$

Balance, December 31, 2016
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Dividends accrued
Issuance of common stock,
net of offering costs
Exercise of stock options
Retirement of preferred stock
Purchases of treasury stock
Sales of treasury stock
Shares issued in employee
stock purchase plan
Stock-based compensation
Reclass of AOCI (Note 1)
Balance, December 31, 2017

Preferred
Stock

9,477
43
-

$

938
(55)
-

$

40,515
167
(490)
-

10
-

-

131
179

9,530
-

883
-

40,502
-

3,000
57
-

(883)
-

39,908
261
(7,908)
42

12
$

Capital
Surplus

12,599

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$

-

161
232
$

73,198

Retained
Earnings
$

40,235
8,670
(537)
-

$

48,368
8,671
(463)
(34)
128
$

56,670

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Treasury
Stock,
at Cost
-

$

(372)
353
$

(19)

474
(214)
-

Total
Shareholders'
Equity
$

260
(910)
(128)
$

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(778)

91,639
8,670
(214)
(537)
210
(545)
141
179
99,543
8,671
(910)
(463)
42,908
318
(8,825)
(372)
395
173
232
-

$

141,670

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
2017

2016

Operating Activities
Net income

$

8,671

$

8,670

Items not requiring (providing) cash:
Provision for loan losses
Net amortization of securities
Depreciation

1,000

2,548

364

282

2,111

1,999

Gain on sales of loans

(938)

(1,354)

Appreciation in cash surrender value life insurance

(562)

(250)

Net gain on sales of foreclosed assets

(2)

Reduction in value of foreclosed assets

-

22

7

(8)

Loss (gain) on disposition of fixed assets
Loss on sale of other assets (FirstCapital GP, LLC)
Deferred income taxes
Impact of tax reform
Stock-based compensation

110
(414)

(2)

(766)

1,984

-

232

179

Net accretion on loans (FMV accretion)

(9)

-

Amortization of intangible assets (CDI amortization)

20

-

-

44

901

4,946

Equity in undistributed loss (earnings) of FirstCapital GP, LLC
Net change in:
Loans held for sale
Other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash from operating activities

(1,671)

93

294

1,230

12,098

17,633

(19,427)

(23,228)

Investing Activities
Net change in interest-bearing deposits in banks
Activity in available-for-sale securities:
Maturities, prepayments and calls
Purchases

323,700

376,910

(372,732)

(374,999)

20,601

30,039

Activity in held-to-maturity securities:
Maturities, prepayments and calls
Activity in investment in partnerships
Purchases
Net change in restricted investments carried at cost
Loan originations and principal collections, net

-

(285)

(7)

(239)

(78,525)

(2,379)

Proceeds from sales of fixed assets

126

7

Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets

205

8

Proceeds from sales of other assets (FirstCapital GP, LLC)

878

Purchases of bank-owned life insurance

(15,000)

Additions to premises and equipment

(3,359)

Acquistions, net of cash received

11,314

Net cash from investing activities

(132,226)

(2,246)
3,588

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share and per share data)
2017

2016

Financing Activities
Net increase in deposits

$

Net increase (decrease) in advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

102,076

$

(97)

20
3,513

Net change in securities sold under agreements to repurchase

(8,734)

Issuance of common stock

42,908

-

318

210

Purchases of funds and short term borrowings

(500)

500

Purchases of treasury stock

(372)

-

Exercise of stock options

Proceeds from sales of treasury stock

395

Purchases and retirement of preferred stock

-

(8,825)

Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan
Cash dividends paid
Net cash from financing activities

(545)

173

141

(596)

(546)

126,746

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

(16,555)

$

(13,262)

6,618

7,959

22,014

14,055

28,632

$

3,575

$

22,014

Supplemental Information
Interest paid

$

Income taxes paid

5,000

3,086
4,280

Non-cash Supplemental Information
Transfers from loans to foreclosed assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$

203

$

322

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting
Nature of Operation
First Bancshares of Texas, Inc. (the Company) is a bank holding company whose
principal activity is the ownership and management of its wholly owned subsidiary,
FirstCapital Bank of Texas, N.A. (the Bank). The Bank's primary source of revenue is
providing a variety of financial services to individuals and businesses primarily in the
Texas cities of Amarillo, Horseshoe Bay, Marble Falls, Lubbock and Midland, and their
respective surrounding areas. The Bank is subject to the regulation of certain federal
and state agencies and undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the
Bank. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Uses of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents include cash, balances due from banks and federal funds
sold, all of which mature within 90 days. Net cash flows are reported for customer loan
and deposit transactions, interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions, federal
funds purchased and repurchase agreements.
The Company may be required to maintain average balances on hand or with the
Federal Reserve Bank. The Company was not required to maintain a required reserve
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Banks
Interest-bearing deposits in banks mature within one year and are carried at cost.

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
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Securities
Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
are classified as "held to maturity" and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not
classified as held to maturity are classified as "available for sale" and recorded at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other
comprehensive income, net of tax. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in
interest income using the interest method. Gains and losses on the sale of securities
are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification
method.
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) on at
least a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market conditions
warrant such evaluation. For securities in an unrealized loss position, management
considers the extent and duration of the unrealized loss, and the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the issuer. Management also assesses whether it intends to sell,
or it is more likely than not that it will be requested to sell, a security in an unrealized loss
position before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding
intent or requirement to sell is met, the entire difference between amortized cost and fair
value is recognized as impairment through earnings, For debt securities that do not
meet the aforementioned criteria, the amount of impairment is split into two components
as follows: 1) OTTI related to credit loss, which must be recognized in the income
statement and 2) other-than-temporary impairment (OTTI) related to other factors, which
is recognized in other comprehensive income. The credit loss is defined as the
difference between the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the
amortized cost basis. For equity securities, the entire amount of impairment is
recognized through earnings.

Investment in Partnerships
The Company accounts for the investment in partnerships based on the cost method of
accounting, and amounts are presented in Other Assets on the Statement of Financial
Condition. The total remaining commitment is $4,361.
In 2016, the Company purchased a partnership interest in Valesco Fund II, L.P. for $126
and committed to purchase a total of $3,000. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
carrying value of the investment in the partnership was $297, and $126, respectively.
In 2014, the Company purchased a partnership interest in Independent Bankers Capital
Fund III, L.P. for $458 and committed to purchase a total of $1,500. At December 31,
2017 and 2016, the carrying value of the investment in the partnership was $905, and
$681, respectively.
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In 2012, the Company committed to purchase a partnership interest in Pharos III, L.P.
for a total of $1,500. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying value of the
investment in the partnership was $615 and $615, respectively.
In 2011, the Company purchased a partnership interest in Valesco Commerce Street
Capital, L.P. for $59 and committed to purchase a total of $500. At December 31, 2017
and 2016, the carrying value of the investment in the partnership was $95 and $105,
respectively.
In 2009, the Company purchased a partnership interest in Independent Bankers Capital
Fund II, L.P. for $37 and committed to purchase a total of $250. At December 31, 2017
and 2016, the carrying value of the investment in the partnership was $57 and $101,
respectively.

Restricted Investments Carried at Cost
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) and TIB-The
Independent Bankers Bank (TIB) stock are required investments for institutions that are
members of the FHLB, FRB and TIB systems. The required investments in the common
stock are based on predetermined formulas, carried at cost and evaluated for
impairment.

Loans Held for Sale
Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower
of cost or fair value, as determined by outstanding commitments by investors. Net
unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to
noninterest income. Gains and losses on loan sales are recorded in noninterest income,
and direct loan origination costs and fees are deferred at loan origination of the loan and
are recognized in noninterest income upon sale of the loan. Loans are generally sold
servicing released.

Loans
The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. A
substantial portion of the loan portfolio is represented by commercial loans throughout
the Texas cities of Amarillo, Horseshoe Bay, Lubbock, Marble Falls and Midland and
their respective surrounding areas. The ability of the Company's debtors to honor their
contracts is dependent upon the general economic conditions in this area.
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Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or
until maturity or payoff are reported at their outstanding principal balances adjusted for
unearned income, charge offs, the allowance for loan losses, any unamortized deferred
fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased
loans. For loans amortized at cost, interest income is accrued based on the unpaid
principal balance.
The accrual of interest on all loans is generally discontinued at the time the loan is 90
days past due unless the credit is well secured and in process of collection. Past due
status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on
nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is
considered doubtful.
All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged
off are reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on
the cash basis or cost recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are
returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due
are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit
losses. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are
credited to the allowance. The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis
by management and is based upon management's periodic review of the collectibility of
the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio,
adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of any
underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. Allocations of the allowance
may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in
management’s judgment should be charged off.
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The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component
relates to loans that are individually classified as impaired. Commercial and commercial
real estate loans are individually evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. For
those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired
loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component is based on
historical charge-off experience and expected loss given default derived from the
Company's internal risk rating process. Other adjustments may be made to the
allowance for pools of loans after an assessment of internal or external influences on
credit quality that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data. Factors
include the following: levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans; levels of
and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; migrations of loans to the classification of
special mention, substandard or doubtful; trends in volume and terms of loans’ effects of
any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other changes in lending
policies, procedures, and practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending
management and other relevant staff; national and local economic trends and
conditions; industry conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentration.
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal
or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral
value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when
due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls
generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of
payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including
the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record
and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment
is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest
rate, the loan's obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent.
Groups of loans with similar risk characteristics are collectively evaluated for impairment
based on the group's historical loss experience adjusted for changes in trends,
conditions and other relevant factors that affect repayment of the loans. Accordingly, the
Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment measurements, unless such loans are the subject of a restructuring
agreement due to financial difficulties of the borrower.
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A troubled debt restructured loan is a loan, which the Company, for reasons related to a
borrower's financial difficulties, grants a concession to the borrower that the Company
would not otherwise consider. The loan terms which have been modified or restructured
due to a borrower's financial difficulty include, but are not limited to, a reduction in the
stated interest rate; an extension of the maturity at an interest rate below current market;
a reduction in the face amount of the debt; a reduction in the accrued interest; or reaging, extensions, deferrals, renewals and rewrites. A troubled debt restructured loan
would generally be considered impaired in the year of modification and will be assessed
periodically for continued impairment.

Premises and Equipment
Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated
depreciation computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets or the expected terms of the leases, if shorter.
The estimated useful lives for each major depreciable classification of premises and
equipment are as follows:
Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Equipment

35-40 years
5-10 years
3-5 years

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance
The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key executives.
Company owned life insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the
insurance contract at the balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted
for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one year from
the transaction date and are presented at the amount of cash received in connection
with the transaction. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral
based on the fair value of the underlying securities.

Preferred Stock
The Company has the authority to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock,
$1.00 par value per share. The preferred stock was available for issuance from time to
time for various purposes as determined by the board of directors, including making
future acquisitions, raising additional equity capital and financing.
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Series 2009 Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2017, all Series 2009 Preferred Stock was retired. As of December
31, 2016, the Company had 882,544 shares outstanding, of Series 2009 Preferred
Stock.
The Company has designated 1,100,000 of authorized shares as Series 2009 Preferred
Stock. The Series 2009 Preferred Stock had a subscription price of $10.00 per share
and a par value of $1.00 per share. Dividends are paid quarterly, and are based on a
variable rate equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate in effect on the first day of each
quarterly interest payment period, with a floor rate of 6% and a ceiling rate of 9%.
Dividends are non-cumulative.
If the board of directors does not declare a dividend for a particular quarterly period, the
Company has no obligation to pay dividends for that quarter.
The holders of the Series 2009 Preferred Stock have no voting rights, except in
connection with (1) the creation of a class or series of stock ranking prior to the Series A
in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on its liquidation, dissolution,
or winding up; (2) certain mergers and consolidations between the Company and
another entity; (3) amendments to the Company's Articles. Holders also do not have any
preemptive or subscription rights to acquire additional shares of Company stock.
The Series 2009 Preferred Stock has no maturity date and the Company is not obligated
to redeem them. The Company may, at its option, and subject to the prior approval of
the Federal Reserve Bank, redeem the Series 2009 Preferred Stock in whole or in part
at any time at a cash redemption price of $10.00 per share. During 2017, the Company
redeemed 882,544 preferred shares for a total redemption price of $8,825. During 2016,
the Company redeemed 54,500 preferred shares for a total redemption price of $545.

Treasury Stock
Treasury stock is accounted for on the cost method, and consists of 1,279 shares at
December 31, 2017. There was no treasury stock at December 31, 2016.
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Stock Based Compensation
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognizes the fair value (calculated
value) of stock-based awards to employees as compensation cost over the requisite
service period. The share-based employee compensation plan is described more fully in
Note 13.

Transfers of Financial Assets
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets
has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered
when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company – put presumptively beyond
the reach of the transferor and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership, (2)
the transferee obtains the rights (free of conditions that constrain it from taking
advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the
Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an
agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unilaterally cause
the holder to return specific assets.

Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting
guidance (ASC 740, Income Taxes). The income tax accounting guidance results in two
components of income tax expense: current and deferred. Current income tax expense
reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of
the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues. The
Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet)
method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax
effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and
enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur.
Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
between periods. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on
the weight of evidence available, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Tax positions are recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits,
that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more
likely than not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and,
upon examination, also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if
any. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially
and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than
50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has
full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a tax
position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts,
circumstances and information available at the reporting date and is subject to
management's judgment.
The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a component of
income tax expense. There were no interest or penalties recorded during the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. The Company files consolidated income tax
returns with its subsidiary. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal or state income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2012.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments
Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments
to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing
needs. The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, before
considering customer collateral or ability to repay. Such financial instruments are
recorded when they are funded.

Earnings per Common Share
Basic earnings per common share is net income divided by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Employee Stock Purchase
Plan (“ESPP”) shares are considered outstanding for this calculation unless unearned.
Diluted earnings per common share includes the dilutive effect of additional potential
common shares issuable under stock options.

Dividend Restriction
Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends
paid by the bank to the holding company or by the holding company to shareholders.
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Loss Contingencies
Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an
amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe
there now are such matters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.

Operating Segments
While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products
and services, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a
Company-wide basis. Operating segments are aggregated into one as operating results
for all segments that are similar. Accordingly, all of the financial service operations are
considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.

Retirement Plans
Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expense is the amount of matching
contributions. Deferred compensation and supplemental retirement plan expense
allocates the benefits over years of service.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and
other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a separate note. Fair value estimates
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit
risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for
particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly
affect these estimates.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income, net of
applicable income taxes. Other comprehensive income includes unrealized gains on
available-for-sale securities.

Transfers between Fair Value Hierarchy Levels
Transfers in and out of Level 1 (quoted market prices), Level 2 (other significant
observable inputs) and Level 3 (significant unobservable inputs) are recognized on the
period ending date.
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Other Intangible Assets
Intangible assets, such as core deposit intangibles, acquired in a purchase business
combination with definite useful lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives to
their estimated residual values. The core deposit intangible is amortized on an
accelerated method over its estimated useful life of 7 years.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards
In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08, “Receivables – Nonrefundable Fees and
Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20), Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt
Securities” (“ASU 2017-08”). These amendments shorten the amortization period for
certain callable debt securities held at a premium. Specifically, the amendments require
the premium to be amortized to the earliest call date. The amendments do not require an
accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount continues to be
amortized to maturity. As permitted by the amendment, the Company elected to early
adopt the provisions of this ASU as of January 1, 2017. Adoption of ASU 2017-08 did
not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, “Income Statement—Reporting
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” (“ASU 2018-02”). The amendments in this
Update allow a reclassification between accumulated other comprehensive income and
retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. As
permitted by the amendment, the Company elected to early adopt the provisions of this
ASU as of December 31, 2017. Adoption of ASU 2017-08 did not have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Note 2: Securities
The amortized cost and appropriate fair value of the Company's available-for-sale
securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, are presented below.

December 31, 2017
Amortized
Cost
Available-for-sale Securities
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed
Municipal bonds

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair Value

$

55,467
14,485

$

312
5

$

(1,203)
(98)

$

54,576
14,392

Total available-for-sale securities

$

69,952

$

317

$

(1,301)

$

68,968

Held to maturity Securities
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed
Municipal bonds
U.S. Government and agency

$

60,426
28,545
7,449

$

57
416
64

$

(1,391)
(5)
-

$

59,092
28,956
7,513

Total held-to-maturity securities

$

96,420

$

537

$

(1,396)

$

95,561
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December 31, 2016
Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Amortized
Cost
Available-for-sale Securities
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed
Municipal bonds

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair Value

$

6,512
14,751

$

461
14

$

(81)

$

6,973
14,684

Total available-for-sale securities

$

21,263

$

475

$

(81)

$

21,657

Held to maturity Securities
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed
Municipal bonds
U.S. Government and agency

$

74,993
29,629
12,418

$

102
629
158

$

(1,483)
(32)
(6)

$

73,612
30,226
12,570

Total held-to-maturity securities

$

117,040

$

889

$

(1,521)

$

116,408

The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale securities and held to maturity
securities at December 31, 2017 by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected
maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
Available for sale
Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Held to Maturity
Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Within one year or less
Due from one to five years
Due from five to ten years
Due after ten years
Mortgage-backed securities

$

307
5,718
8,460
55,467

$

303
5,669
8,419
54,576

$

3,393
18,701
8,395
5,505
60,426

$

3,402
18,890
8,557
5,620
59,092

Totals

$

69,952

$

68,967

$

96,420

$

95,561

There were no sales of securities available for sale in 2017 or 2016.
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At December 31, 2017 and 2016, securities with a carrying values of $64,747 and
$79,757, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes
required or permitted by law.
The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company's
investments with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporary
impaired, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
December 31, 2017
12 Months or More

Less than 12 Months

Category
HTM Municipal Bonds
AFS Municipal Bonds

Fair Value

Unrealized
Losses

$

$

HTM U.S. Government
and agency
AFS U.S. Government
and agency
HTM Mortgagebacked securities
AFS Mortgage-backed
securities

Total

$

3,144
13,536

Fair Value

HTM Municipal Bonds
AFS Municipal Bonds

Total

(5)
(98)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

57,663

(1,391)

49,310

(1,203)

35,729

49,310

(1,203)

-

87,924

$

(1,586) $

$

4,251
10,501
4,994
40,608

60,354

Fair Value

(32) $
(81)

$

(1,111) $

-

-

$

4,251
10,501
4,994

-

-

-

-

(780) $

(820)

26,220

$

(2,697)

Unrealized
Lossses

Fair Value

-

26,220

$

Total

Unrealized
Losses
$

123,653

-

$

-

(6)

(661)

-

35,729

(1,111)

December 31, 2016
12 Months or More

$

$

$

-

Unrealized
Losses

AFS U.S. Government
and agency
HTM Mortgagebacked securities
AFS Mortgage-backed
securities

3,144
13,536

-

(280)

-

$

-

21,934

$

Unrealized
Lossses

Fair Value

-

Fair Value

HTM U.S. Government
and agency

Unrealized
Losses

(5) $
(98)

Less than 12 Months

Category

Total

(820) $

$

(6)
-

66,828

(1,482)

86,574

(32)
(81)

$

(1,601)
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Certain investments in debt securities are reported in the consolidated financial
statements at an amount less than their historical cost. Total fair value of these
investments at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, was $123,653 and
$86,574, which is approximately 75 percent and 63 percent, respectively, of the
Company's available for sale and held to maturity investment portfolio. These declines
primarily resulted from recent changes in market interest rates.

Mortgage-backed, U.S. Government and Agency, and Municipal Bonds
The unrealized losses on the Company's investment in mortgage-backed, U.S.
Government, Agency and Municipal securities were caused by interest rate increases
and increases in prepayment speeds. Accordingly, it is expected that the securities
would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost basis of the Company's
investments. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest
rates and increases in prepayment speeds and not credit quality, and because the
Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that
the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized
cost basis, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to
be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Note 3: Loans and Allowances for Loan Losses
Portfolio segments of loans as of December 31 are as follows.

2017
Real Estate
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans

2016

$

166,634
292,252
51,981
45,661
10,055
187,657
22,424

$

140,990
250,612
53,026
41,056
7,511
177,546
22,255

Gross loans
Less Allowance for loan losses

$

776,664
(12,799)

$

692,996
(12,194)

Loans, net

$

763,865

$

680,802

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
The following tables present the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the
recorded investment in loans based on portfolio segment and evaluation method as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016:

December 31, 2017
Real Estate

Consumer

Commercial

Other loans

Leases
receivable

$

7,650
(222)
1
1,757

$

442
(23)
7
(216)

$

3,634
(201)
43
(407)

$

468
(134)

$

-

$

12,194
(446)
51
1,000

Ending Balance

$

9,186

$

210

$

3,069

$

334

$

-

$

12,799

Ending balance allocated to loans
individually evaluated for
impairment

$

144

$

-

$

105

$

-

$

-

$

249

Ending balance

$

9,186

$

210

$

3,069

$

334

$

-

$

12,799

Ending balance of loans
individually evaluated for
impairment

$

10,414

$

-

$

9,640

$

-

$

-

$

20,054

$

10,055

$

187,657

$

22,424

$

-

$

776,664

Total

Allow ance for Loan Losses
Beginning Balance
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provision (credit) for loan losses

Ending balance allocated to loans
collectively evaluated for
impairment

Ending balance of loans
collectively evaluated for
impairment
Ending Balance

9,042

210

546,114
$ 556,528

2,964

10,055

334

178,017

-

22,424

12,550

-

756,610

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
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December 31, 2016
Real Estate

Consumer

Commercial

Other loans

Leases
receivable

$

6,245
2
1,403

$

176
(25)
5
286

$

3,009
(103)
38
690

$

297
171

$

2
(2)

$

Ending Balance

$

7,650

$

442

$

3,634

$

468

$

-

$

12,194

Ending balance allocated to loans
individually evaluated for
impairment

$

281

$

-

$

64

$

-

$

-

$

345

Total

Allow ance for Loan Losses
Beginning Balance
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provision for loan losses

Ending balance allocated to loans
collectively evaluated for
impairment

442

7,369

3,570

468

-

9,729
(128)
45
2,548

11,849

Ending balance

$

7,650

$

442

$

3,634

$

468

$

-

$

12,194

Ending balance of loans
individually evaluated for
impairment

$

4,860

$

-

$

9,408

$

-

$

-

$

14,268

$

485,684

$

7,511

$

177,546

$

22,255

$

-

$

692,996

Ending balance of loans
collectively evaluated for
impairment
Ending Balance

480,824

7,511

168,138

22,255

-

678,728

Internal Risk Categories
The Company monitors credit quality within its portfolio segments based on primary
credit quality indicators. All of the Company's loans are evaluated using pass rated or
reservable criticized as the primary credit quality indicator. The term reservable
criticized refers to those loans that are internally classified or listed by the Company as
special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. These assets pose an elevated risk and
may have a high probability of default or total loss. In 2017, the bank reviewed
approximately 75% of its loan portfolio, a combination of external loan review, and
internal loan review.

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
The classifications of loans reflect a judgment about the risks of default and loss
associated with the loan. The Company reviews the ratings on credits on at least a
quarterly basis. Ratings can be changed at any time based on a change in inherent risk.
Ratings are adjusted to reflect the degree of risk and loss that is felt to be inherent in
each credit as of each monthly reporting period. The methodology is structured so that
specific allocations are increased in accordance with deterioration in credit quality (and a
corresponding increase in risk and loss) or decreased in accordance with improvement
in credit quality (and a corresponding decrease in risk and loss).
Credits rated special mention show clear signs of financial weaknesses or deterioration
in credit worthiness, however, such concerns are not so pronounced that the Company
generally expects to experience significant loss within the short-term. Such credits
typically maintain the ability to perform within standard credit terms and credit exposure
is not as prominent as credits rated more harshly.
Credits rated substandard are those in which the normal repayment of principal and
interest may be, or has been, jeopardized by reason of adverse trends or developments
of a financial, managerial, economic or political nature, or important weaknesses exist in
collateral. A protracted workout on these credits is a distinct possibility. Prompt
corrective action is therefore required to strengthen the Company's position, and/or to
reduce exposure and to assure that adequate remedial measures are taken by the
borrower. Credit exposure becomes more likely in such credits and a serious evaluation
of the secondary support to the credit is performed.
Credits rated doubtful are those in which full collection of principal appears highly
questionable, and which some degree of loss is anticipated, even though the ultimate
amount of loss may not yet be certain and/or other factors exist which could affect
collection of debt. Based upon available information, positive action by the Company is
required to avert or minimize loss. Credits rated doubtful are generally also placed on
nonaccrual.
Pass rated refers to loans that are not considered criticized. In addition to this primary
credit quality indicator, the Company uses other credit quality indicators for certain types
of loans.

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Risk characteristics applicable to each segment of the loan portfolio are described as
follows.
Real Estate: The Company's real estate portfolio is comprised primarily of homogenous
loans secured by residential and commercial real estate. Repayment of these loans is
primarily dependent on the personal income and credit rating of the borrowers and
successful operations of the property securing the loan or the business conducted on the
property securing the loan. Credit risk in residential loans can be impacted by economic
conditions within the Company's market areas that might impact either property values
or a borrower's personal income. Risk is mitigated by the fact that the loans are of
smaller individual amounts and spread over a large number of borrowers. Commercial
real estate loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans
secured by real estate. Credit risk in these loans may be impacted by the
creditworthiness of a borrower, property values and the local economies in the
Company's market areas.
Consumer: The consumer loan portfolio consists of various term and line of credit loans
such as automobile loans and loans for other personal purposes. Repayment for these
types of loans will come from a borrower's income sources that are typically independent
of the loan purpose. Credit risk is driven by consumer economic factors (such as
unemployment and general economic conditions in the Company's market area) and the
creditworthiness of a borrower.
Commercial: The commercial portfolio includes loans to commercial customers for use
in financing working capital needs, equipment purchases and expansions. The loans in
this category are repaid primarily from the cash flow of a borrower's principal business
operation. Credit risk in these loans is driven by creditworthiness of a borrower and the
economic conditions that impact the cash flow stability from business operations.
Other: Other loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to
commercial loans. These loans are based primarily on the identified cash flows of the
borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. Most
loans are secured by the assets being financed and may include personal guarantees.

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
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December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
The following tables set forth information regarding the internal classes of the loan
portfolio by primary credit quality indicator as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
December 31, 2017
Internal Loan Grade
Special
Mention

Pass

Total

Doubtful

Substandard

Real Estate
1-4 Family Real Estate

$

Commercial Real Estate

162,811

$

1,681

$

$

2,142

$

-

166,634
292,252

-

279,640

1,328

Construction

51,569

412

-

-

51,981

Land Development

45,403

-

258

-

45,661

Consumer
Commercial
Other Loans
Total

10,055

-

-

-

10,055

167,960

225

19,472

-

187,657

-

22,348
$

11,284

739,786

$

$

22,424

-

76

3,646

$

33,232

-

776,664

$

December 31, 2016
Internal Loan Grade
Special
Mention

Pass

Total

Doubtful

Substandard

Real Estate
1-4 Family Real Estate

$

137,268

$

1,397

$

2,325

$

-

$

140,990

237,517

6,016

7,079

-

250,612

Construction

52,614

412

-

-

53,026

Land Development

38,997

1,859

200

-

41,056

7,503

-

8

-

7,511

Commercial

144,558

8,579

24,409

-

177,546

Other Loans

14,422

4,919

2,914

-

22,255

Commercial Real Estate

Consumer

Total

$

632,879

$

23,182

$

36,935

$

-

$

692,996

The Company evaluates the loan risk grading system definitions and allowance for loan
loss methodology on an ongoing basis. No significant changes were made to either
during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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The following tables present the Company's loan portfolio aging analysis of the recorded
investment in loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
December 31, 2017

30-89 Days
Past Due

90 Days and
Greater

$

$

Total Past
Due

Current

Total Loans

Recorded
Investment >
90 Days and
Still
Accruing

Real Estate
1-4 Family Real Estate

315

Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other Loans
Total

$

1,099

$

1,414

$

165,220

$

166,634

$

-

542

-

542

291,710

292,252

-

-

-

-

51,981

51,981

-

-

-

-

45,661

45,661

-

112

-

112

9,943

10,055

-

1,396

83

1,479

186,178

187,657

-

-

-

-

22,424

22,424

2,365

$

1,182

$

3,547

$

773,117

$

776,664

$

-

December 31, 2016

30-89 Days
Past Due

90 Days and
Greater

$

$

Total Past
Due

Current

Total Loans

Recorded
Investment >
90 Days and
Still
Accruing

Real Estate
1-4 Family Real Estate

604

783

$

1,387

$

139,603

$

140,990

$

-

Commercial Real Estate

-

-

-

250,612

250,612

-

Construction

-

-

-

53,026

53,026

-

16

-

16

41,040

41,056

-

Consumer

Land Development

65

-

65

7,446

7,511

-

Commercial

82

848

930

176,616

177,546

-

Other Loans

8

-

8

22,247

22,255

-

Total

$

775

$

1,631

$

2,406

$

690,590

$

692,996

$

-

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
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The following table sets forth information regarding the nonaccrual status within the loan
portfolio as of 2017 and 2016:
2017

2016

Real Estate
1-4 Family Real Estate

$

Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other Loans

Total

$

1,316

$

976

240

27

-

386

63

-

-

-

860

870

-

-

2,479

$

2,259

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance
(ASC 310-10-35-16), when based on current information and events, it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance
with the contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans include nonperforming
commercial loans but also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings when
concessions have been granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. These
concessions could include a reduction in the interest rate on the loan, payment
extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other actions intended to maximize
collection.

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
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The following tables present impaired loans by class of loans for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016:
December 31, 2017
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

With no related allowance:
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans
Total:

$

1,325
5,217
63
4,433
-

$

1,272
5,112
63
4,382
-

$

-

$

1,398
5,356
78
3,249
-

$

9
322
146
-

$

11,038

$

10,829

$

-

$

10,081

$

477

$

133
3,834
5,258
-

$

133
3,834
5,258
-

$

14
129
105
-

$

136
3,966
7,302
-

$

4
240
451
-

$

9,225

$

9,225

$

248

$

11,404

$

695

$

20,263

$

20,054

$

248

$

21,485

$

1,172

With a related allowance:
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans
Total:
Totals

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
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December 31, 2016
Unpaid
Prinicpal
Balance

Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized

$

$

With no related allowance:
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans

$

Total:

13
4,483
9,344
-

$

13
4,483
9,344
-

$

-

20
4,483
9,590
-

1
70
640
-

13,840

13,840

-

14,093

711

242
122
64
-

242
122
64
-

159
122
64
-

281
125
76
-

14
8
5
-

428

428

345

482

27

With a related allowance:
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans
Total:
Totals

$

14,268

$

14,268

$

345

$

14,575

$

738

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had a number of loans that were
modified in troubled debt restructurings, some of which still may be impaired. The
modification of terms of such loans included one or a combination of the following: an
extension of maturity, a reduction of the stated interest rate or a permanent reduction of
the recorded investment in the loan.
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The following table presents information regarding newly designated troubled debt
restructurings by class for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. Newly
classified troubled debt restructurings:
December 31, 2017
Premodification
Recorded
Balance

Postmodification
Recorded
Balance

1
3
-

$

227
1,175
-

$

173
1,075
-

4

$

1,402

$

1,248

Number of
Loans
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans

December 31, 2016
Premodification
Recorded
Balance

Number of
Loans
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans

Postmodification
Recorded
Balance

1
5
-

$

4,480
8,266
-

$

4,480
6,568
-

6

$

12,746

$

11,048

First Bancshares of Texas, Inc.
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(Dollar amounts in thousands except number of loans)
In 2017, one loan had a partial loss within 12 months of renegotiation. This loan is a 1-4
Family loan and has a carrying balance of $53. In 2016, there were no loans that had a
loss within 12 months of renegotiation. The Bank has no commitments to loan additional
funds to borrowers whose loans have been modified.
The following table presents information regarding all troubled debt restructurings with
reserves, by class, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
December 31, 2017
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Number of
Loans
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans

1
1
9
-

$

11

$

Reserve

173
4,383
63
8,332
-

$

12,951

$

48
48

December 31, 2016
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Number of
Loans
Real Estate:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate
Construction
Land Development
Consumer
Commercial
Other loans

Reserve

2
1
9
-

$

101
4,480
9,344
-

$

88
72
201
-

12

$

13,925

$

361
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Note 4: Premises and Equipment
A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment is
presented below:
2017
Land
Projects and Construction in Progress
Bank Premises
Furniture, software and equipment
Premises and equipment, at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net premises and equipment

$

$

2016

2,721
142
22,749
10,963
36,575
(13,845)
22,730

$

$

2,721
453
20,737
9,420
33,331
(11,764)
21,567

Depreciation expense was $2,111 and $1,999 for the years ended December 31, 2017,
and 2016, respectively.
Pursuant to the terms of noncancellable lease agreements in effect at December 31,
2017, pertaining to banking premises and equipment, future minimum rent commitments
under various operating leases are as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total

Operating Leases
$
696
367
311
162
154
769
$

2,459

Total rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $864 and
$750, respectively.
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Note 5: Deposits
The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250 or more at December
31, 2017 and 2016 were $76,680 and $69,934, respectively. At December 31, 2017, the
scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022 and thereafter

$305,005
16,065
1,296
676
161
$323,203

Note 6: Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase amounted to $17,614 and $26,348 at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Such agreements mature on a daily basis
and are secured by U.S. government securities with a fair value of $49,484 and $27,796
as of 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Note 7: Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank
At year-end, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank were as follows:
2017
Maturities 12/18/2019 through 12/16/2026 at the
end of 2017, at fixed rates from 1.338% to
2.695%, averaging 2.059%
Maturities 12/18/2017 through 12/16/2026 at the
end of 2016, at fixed rates from 1.25% to
2.695%, averaging 1.939%

$

2016

4,529

$

4,626

The advances were collateralized by $229,126 and $237,287 of first lien mortgage loans
under a blanket line arrangement at year-end 2017 and 2016.
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Maturities of FHLB advances as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

$

3,743
99
687
4,529

Note 8: Subordinated Debentures
On December 30, 2003, the Company completed the placement of $3,093 in
subordinated debentures to First Bancshares of Texas Statutory Trust I (the Trust). The
Trust funded the purchase of the subordinated debentures through the sale of trust
preferred securities to First Tennessee Bank National Association with a liquidation
value of $3,093.
Using interest payments made by the Company on the debentures, the Trust began
paying quarterly dividends to preferred security holders on June 17, 2004. The annual
percentage rate of the interest payable on the subordinated debentures and distributions
payable on the preferred securities is 3-Month LIBOR plus 2.85 percent (4.45 percent
and 3.71 percent at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively). Also, the interest rate
cannot exceed the maximum rate permitted by New York law.
Dividends on the preferred securities are cumulative and the Trust may defer the
payments for up to five years. The preferred securities mature in March 2034.
Subordinated debt may be included in regulatory Tier I capital subject to a limitation that
such amounts do not exceed 25 percent of Tier I capital. The remainder of subordinated
debt is included in Tier II capital. There is no limitation for inclusion of subordinated debt
in total risk-based capital and, as such, all subordinated debt was included in total riskbased capital.
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, interest expense on the
subordinated debentures was $127 and $112, respectively.
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Note 9: Lines of Credit
The Company has a line of credit with a correspondent bank totaling $15,000 at a
variable interest rate quoted on the day any advances are drawn. The terms provide for
the unsecured purchase of federal funds. The agreement does not contain a stated
expiration date, but may be terminated at any time at the discretion of the correspondent
bank. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, no advances were outstanding under this
agreement.

The Company has a second line of credit with a correspondent bank totaling $10,000 at
a variable interest rate quoted on the day any advances are drawn. The terms provide
for the unsecured purchase of federal funds for the first ten (10) days and on the
eleventh (11) day, the Company must furnish collateral in the form of marketable
securities. The agreement expires August 1, 2018. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
no advances were outstanding under this agreement.
The Company has a third line of credit with a correspondent bank totaling $20,000 at a
variable interest rate quoted on the day any advances are drawn. The terms provide for
the unsecured purchase of federal funds for the first ten (10) days and on the eleventh
(11) day, the Company must furnish collateral in the form of government securities. The
agreement expires April 25, 2018. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, no advances
were outstanding under this agreement.
The Company had a line of credit with a correspondent bank totaling $5,000. The
agreement expired October 30, 2017. As of December 31, 2016 an advance of $500
was outstanding.

Note 10: Income Taxes
Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016 consisted of the
following:

2017
Income tax expense:
Current federal income tax
Current state income tax
Expense due to enactment of federal tax reform
Deferred federal income tax
Income tax expense

2016

$

4,288
27
1,984
(414)

$

4,757
29
(766)

$

5,885

$

4,020
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A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate of the Company's actual
income tax expense is shown below.

Income tax expense at the statutory rate
State income taxes
Nontaxable earnings
Nondeductible expenses
Tax reform impact
Other

$

Provision for income tax

$

2017
4,949
18
(610)
97
1,984
(553)
5,885

$

$

2016
4,434
29
(512)
69
4,020

On December 22, 2017, the United States enacted tax reform legislation commonly
known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”), resulting in significant modifications
to existing law. As a result of the changes under the Tax Act, the Company recorded
incremental income tax expense of $1,984 during the year ended December 31, 2017,
which consisted primarily of the remeasurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities at
the new federal statutory rate of 21%. Prior to the enactment of the Tax Act, deferred tax
assets and liabilities were measured at the previous federal statutory rate of 34%.
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The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the
consolidated statements of financial condition were:

2017
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses
Benefits payable
Other real estate
Premises and equipment
Unrealized loss on available-forsale securities
Other

Deferred tax liabilities:
Premises and equipment
Unrealized gain on available-forsale securities

Net deferred tax asset

$

2016

2,688
202
32

$

207
76

4,146
90
13
277

$

3,205

$

4,526

$

-

$

85

-

134

$

-

$

219

$

3,205

$

4,307

The company is subject to U.S. federal income tax and Texas gross receipts tax. The
company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years prior to 2014.
The company does not have any uncertain tax positions and does not have any interest
and penalties recorded in the statement of operations or balance sheet for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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Note 11: Restrictions on Dividends & Minimum Regulatory Capital
Requirements
Restrictions on Dividends
Federal and state banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid by the
Bank to the Company. Such regulations generally restrict cash dividends for the year
2018 to the extent of the Bank's earnings for 2018 plus $17,719 of available earnings
from the prior two years. In addition, dividends paid by the Bank would be prohibited if
the effect thereof would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced below applicable
minimum capital requirements.

Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements
Our capital management consists of providing equity to support our current and future
operations. We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
federal and state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can
initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s or FirstCapital
Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank each must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities
and certain off balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.
The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.
Quantitative measures established by regulations to ensure capital adequacy require the
Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total, Tier 1, and
common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average
assets. Management believes, as of December 31, 2017, the Company and the Bank
meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
As of December 31, 2017, the Bank’s capital ratios exceeded those levels necessary to
be categorized as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. To be categorized as “well capitalized”, FirstCapital Bank must maintain
minimum total risk based, common equity Tier 1 risk based, Tier 1 risk based, and Tier 1
leverage ratios. There are no conditions or events since December 31, 2017 that
management believes would have changed FirstCapital Bank’s category.
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Basel III Capital Rules
In July 2013, the three federal bank regulatory agencies jointly published final rules (the
Basel III Capital Rules) establishing a new comprehensive capital framework for U.S.
banking organizations. The rules implement the Basel Committee's December 2010
framework known as "Basel III" for strengthening international capital standards as well
as certain provisions of the Dodd Frank Act. These rules substantially revise the risk
based capital requirements applicable to bank holding companies and depository
institutions, compared to the current U.S. risk based capital rules. The Basel III Capital
Rules define the components of capital and address other issues affecting the numerator
in banking institutions' regulatory capital ratios. These rules also address risk weights
and other issues affecting the denominator in banking institutions' regulatory capital
ratios and replace the existing risk weighting approach with a more risk sensitive
approach. The Basel III Capital Rules were effective for the Company on January 1,
2015 (subject to a four year phase in period).
The Basel III Capital Rules, among other things, (i) introduce a new capital measure
called "Common Equity Tier 1" (CET1), (ii) specify that Tier 1 capital consist of CET1
and "Additional Tier 1 Capital" instruments meeting specified requirements, (iii) define
CET1 narrowly by requiring that most deductions/adjustments to regulatory capital
measures be made to CET1 and not to the other components of capital and (iv) expand
the scope of the deductions/adjustments as compared to existing regulations.
Under the Basel III Capital Rules, the minimum capital ratios as of December 31, 2017,
are as follows:
4.5 percent CET1 to risk weighted assets
6.0 percent Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets
8.0 percent Total capital to risk weighted assets
4.0 percent Minimum leverage ratio
Implementation of the deductions and other adjustments to CET1 began on January 1,
2015, and will phase in over a four year period (beginning at 40 percent on January 1,
2015, and an additional 20 percent per year thereafter). Under the new rule, in order to
avoid limitations on capital distributions, including dividend payments and certain
discretionary bonus payments to executive officers, a banking organization must hold a
capital conservation buffer composed of CET1 capital above its minimum risk based
capital requirements. The implementation of the capital conservation buffer begins on
January 1, 2016, at the 0.625 percent level and will phase in over a four year period
(increasing by that amount on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 2.5 percent on
January 1, 2019). The capital conservation buffer was 1.250% as of December 31,
2017.
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The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the following table.
The capital conservation buffer is not included in the table below.

Minimum Capital
Requirement

Actual
Amount

Ratio

Amount

Minimum to be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt
Corrective Action
Provisions

Ratio

Amount

Ratio

As of December 31, 2017
Total capital (to riskweighted assets):
Consolidated
Bank
Tier I Capital (to riskweighted assets):
Consolidated
Bank
Common Equity Tier I
(to risk-weighted
assets):
Consolidated
Bank
Tier I Capital (to
average assets):
Consolidated
Bank

$ 155,890
120,035

18.2 %
14.0

$

68,605
68,588

8.0 % $
8.0

N/A
85,734

N/A %
10.0

145,142
109,290

16.9
12.7

51,454
51,441

6.0
6.0

N/A
68,588

N/A
8.0

142,142
109,290

16.6
12.7

38,591
38,580

4.5
4.5

N/A
55,727

N/A
6.5

145,142
109,290

13.0
9.8

44,797
44,797

4.0
4.0

N/A
55,997

N/A
5.0

65,222
65,142

8.0 %
8.0

N/A
75,527

N/A %
10.0

As of December 31, 2016
Total capital (to riskweighted assets):
Consolidated
Bank
Tier I Capital (to riskweighted assets):
Consolidated
Bank
Common Equity Tier I
(to risk-weighted
assets):
Consolidated
Bank
Tier I Capital (to
average assets):
Consolidated
Bank

$ 111,772
110,278

14.8 %
14.6

$

$

102,282
100,800

13.5
13.3

50,098
50,037

6.0
6.0

N/A
60,422

N/A
8.0

90,490
100,800

12.0
13.3

38,755
38,708

4.5
4.5

N/A
49,093

N/A
6.5

102,282
100,800

10.3
10.2

39,647
39,588

4.0
4.0

N/A
49,486

N/A
5.0
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Note 12: Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan
The Company has a 401(k) plan in which substantially all employees may participate.
The Company matches employees' contributions based on a percentage of salary
contributed by participants. The Company's expense for the plan was $606 and $580 for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The Company designated 500,000 shares for an employee stock purchase plan effective
August 1, 2011, allowing all employees of the Company an opportunity to purchase
shares of common stock of the Company through an after-tax payroll deduction withheld
from each paycheck. Payroll deductions are transferred into an escrow account until
they have enough to purchase 250 shares, which is the minimum number of shares that
can be purchased through this program. The Company matches 25 percent of
employees' contributions each payroll period up to one hundred twenty five dollars per
payroll period. The Company's expense for the plan was $39 and $30 for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Stock Option Plan
A summary of changes in the Company’s non-vested stock options under the 2007 stock
option plan for the year ended December 31, 2017 were as follows:
Number of
Shares
Non-vested options, December 31, 2016
Granted
Vested
Cancelled
Non-vested options, December 31, 2017

110,600
86,000
(32,600)
(15,000)
149,000

WeightedAverage Grant
Date Value

$

$

5.86
4.75
5.10
6.35
5.31

Under the Company's 2007 stock option plan, the Company may grant options to
purchase its common stock to its directors, officers and employees for up to 600,000
shares of common stock. These stock option grants are primarily incentive-based in
order to attract and retain qualified and highly productive employees. The exercise price
of each stock option is determined on the date of the grant. The Company's stock option
agreements are for a maximum term of ten years. The options vest over a period of five
years following the date of the grant.
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In accordance with authoritative accounting guidance, the Company recognizes
compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions in the consolidated
financial statements with measurement based upon the fair value of the equity or liability
instruments issued. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company
recognized $233 and $179, respectively, in compensation expense for stock options,
which is included as a part of salaries and employee benefits on the consolidated
statements of income.
A summary of changes in the Company’s stock options under the 2007 stock option plan
for the year ended December 31, 2017 and December 2016, were as follows:
December 31,
2017

Shares

2016

Weightedaverage
Exercise
Price

Outstanding,
January 1
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

253,750
86,000
(57,250)
(15,000)

$

9.46
14.79
5.20
12.63

Outstanding,
December 31

267,500

$

11.83

Exerciseable,
December 31

118,500

$

7.64

Weightedaverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term
(In Years)

Weightedaverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term
(In Years)

Weightedaverage
Exercise
Price

Shares
263,000
55,500
(42,750)
(22,000)

$

7.96
13.05
4.84
9.74

6.77

253,750

$

9.46

5.51

4.66

142,850

$

7.64

3.64

December 31,
2017
Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised
Cash received from option exercises
Tax benefit realized from option exercises
Weighted average fair value of options granted

$

2016
644
318
385

4.75

$

401
210
6.65
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The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a BlackScholes option valuation model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table.
Expected volatility is based on a combination of historical volatility of the Company's
stock, and indices of other financial institutions. The Company uses historical data to
estimate option exercise and employee termination within the valuation model; separate
groups of employees that have similar historical exercise behavior are considered
separately for valuation purposes. The expected term of options granted represents the
period of time that options are expected to be outstanding; the range given below results
from certain groups of employees exhibiting different behavior. The risk-free rate for
periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve
in effect at the time of grant. The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company's
history and expectation of dividend payouts.
The fair value of the stock options granted was determined using the following weighted
average assumptions:
2017
2016
Dividend yield
Expected life
10 years
10 years
Expected volatility
18.04%
37.45%
Risk-free interest rate
2.45%
2.24%
The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and vested stock
options as of December 31, 2017.
Options Outstanding

Range of
Exercise Prices
$5.00-$6.00
$6.00-$7.00
$8.00-$9.00
$9.00-$10.00
$10.00-$11.00
$11.00-$12.00
$13.00-$14.00
$14.00-$15.00
$15.00-$16.00

Shares

Weightedaverage
Remaining
Contractual Life
(Years)

Options Exercisable

Weightedaverage
Exercise
price

Shares
Exercisable

Weightedaverage
Exercise
Price

10,000
13,000
5,000
7,000
81,000
22,500
44,500
34,500
50,000

0.25
1.33
4.09
4.78
5.21
7.06
8.06
9.19
9.59

$

5.58
6.08
8.51
9.61
10.11
11.92
13.08
14.46
15.03

10,000
13,000
5,000
7,000
65,100
9,300
9,100
-

$

5.58
6.08
8.51
9.61
10.12
11.92
13.08
-

267,500

6.77

$

11.83

118,500

$

9.56
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As of December 31, 2017, the remaining compensation expense to be recognized for
outstanding stock options was $854. This compensation expense is to be fully
recognized by the year ending December 31, 2022. The cost is expected to be
recognized over a remaining weighted average period of 2.3 years.

Note 13: Related-party Transactions
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to principal officers
and directors and their affiliates. Annual activity consisted of the following:

Beginning balance
New loans
Repayments
Ending balance

$

$

December 31,
2017
2016
29,050
$
24,791
5,074
9,602
(6,111)
(5,343)
28,013
$
29,050

Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at 2017 and 2016, amounted to $14,388
and $47,346, respectively.

Note 14: Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair
value measurements must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that may be used
to measure fair value:

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.
Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
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Recurring Measurements
The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition measured at fair value on a
recurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
December 31, 2017

Financial Assets
Invesment securities:
Mortgage-backed
Municipal bonds
Total financial assets

Total
Fair Value

Level 3
Inputs

Level 2
Inputs

Level 1
Inputs

$

-

$

54,576
14,392

$

-

$

54,576
14,392

$

-

$

68,968

$

-

$

68,968

December 31, 2016
Level 2
Inputs

Level 1
Inputs
Financial Assets
Invesment securities:
Mortgage-backed
Municipal bonds
Total financial assets

Level 3
Inputs

Total
Fair Value

$

-

$

6,973
14,685

$

-

$

6,973
14,685

$

-

$

21,658

$

-

$

21,658

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial condition, as well as the general classification of
such assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. There have been no significant
changes in the valuation techniques during the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016. For assets classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the process used to
develop the reported fair value is described below.
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Available for Sale Securities
Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified
within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then
fair values are estimated by using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics
or independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are
market-based or independently sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to,
yield curves, interest rates, volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss
projections and cash flows. Such securities are classified in Level 2 of the valuation
hierarchy. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities
are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. There are no Level 3 available for sale
securities.

Nonrecurring Measurements
The following table presents the fair value measurement of assets measured at fair
value on a nonrecurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the
fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2017 and 2016:
December 31, 2017
Level 2
Inputs

Level 1
Inputs
Financial assets:
Impaired loans $

-

$

Level 3
Inputs
-

$

906

Total
Fair Value
$

906

December 31, 2016
Level 1
Inputs
Financial assets:
Impaired loans $

Level 2
Inputs
-

$

Level 3
Inputs
-

$

246

Total
Fair Value
$

246

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis and recognized in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial condition, as well as the general classification of
such assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. For assets classified within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy, the process used to develop the reported fair value is described
below.
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Impaired Loans, Net of ALLL
The estimated fair value of collateral-dependent impaired loans is based on the
appraised fair value of the collateral, less estimated cost to sell. Collateral-dependent
impaired loans are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The Company considers the appraisal or evaluation as the starting point for determining
fair value and then considers other factors and events in the environment that may affect
the fair value. Appraisals of the collateral underlying collateral-dependent loans are
obtained when the loan is determined to be collateral-dependent and subsequently as
deemed necessary by management. Appraisals are reviewed for accuracy and
consistency by management. Appraisers are selected from the list of approved
appraisers maintained by management. The appraised values are reduced by discounts
to consider lack of marketability and estimated cost to sell if repayment or satisfaction of
the loan is dependent on the sale of the collateral. These discounts and estimates are
developed by management by comparison to historical results.

Unobservable (Level 3) Inputs
The following table presents quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in
recurring and nonrecurring Level 3 fair value measurements at December 31, 2017 and
2016.

Fair Value

Valuation
Technique

Unobservable
Inputs

Market comparable
properties
Market comparable
properties
Market comparable
properties
Market comparable
properties

Marketability
discount
Marketability
discount
Marketability
discount
Marketability
discount

Market comparable
properties
Market comparable
properties
Market comparable
properties

Marketability
discount
Marketability
discount
Marketability
discount

Range (Weighted
Average)

December 31, 2017:
1-4 Family Real Estate

$

291

Commercial Real Estate

240

Commercial

374

Total Impaired Loans

$

905

$

83

10-30% (20%)
10-30% (20%)
10-30% (20%)
10-30% (20%)

December 31, 2016:
1-4 Family Real Estate
Commercial
Total Impaired Loans

163
$

246

10-30% (20%)
10-30% (20%)
10-30% (20%)
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following table presents estimated fair values of the Company's financial
instruments at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
2017
Carrying
Amount

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets:
Cash, due from bank, federal funds
sold and money market investments
Securities held-to-maturity
Securities available-for-sale
Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Federal Reserve Bank stock
Loans held for sale, at fair value
Loans, net
Accrued interest receivable
Financial liabilities
Deposits
Accrued interest payable
Other Borrowings:

$

121,393
96,420
68,968
588
141
828
763,156
4,054

$

121,393
N/A
N/A
828
4,054

$

95,561
68,968
N/A
N/A
-

$

N/A
N/A
774,816
-

$

940,795
1,099

$

1,099

$

939,948
-

$

-

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase
Advances from FHLB
Subordinated debentures

17,614
4,529
3,093

17,614
-

4,529
3,093

-

2016
Carrying
Amount

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets:
Cash, due from bank, federal funds
sold and money market investments
Securities held-to-maturity
Securities available-for-sale
Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Federal Reserve Bank stock
Loans held for sale, at fair value
Loans , net
Accrued interest receivable
Financial liabilities
Deposits
Accrued interest payable
Other Borrowings:
Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase
Advances from FHLB
Subordinated debentures

$

94,071
117,040
21,658
581
141
828
666,881
3,419

$

94,071
N/A
N/A
828
3,419

$

117,040
21,658
N/A
N/A
-

$

N/A
N/A
682,131
-

$

819,943
619

$

619

$

819,205
-

$

-

26,348
4,626
3,093

26,348
-

4,626
3,093

-
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The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair
value of the above classes of financial instruments.
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Interest-bearing Deposits in Banks, Loans Held for
Sale, Accrued Interest Receivable, Accrued Interest Payable and Securities Sold
Under Agreements to Repurchase – The carrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the relatively short period of time between the origination of these instruments and their
expected realization are considered a Level 1 classification.
Securities Held to Maturity – Fair value estimates are based on quoted market prices, if
available, resulting in a Level 1 classification. If a quoted market price is not available, fair
value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar instruments and is considered a
Level 2 classification.
Loans, Net – Fair values are estimated by stratifying the loan portfolio into groups of loans
with similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregated by type such as real estate,
commercial, consumer, and other loans with each category further segmented into fixed
and adjustable rate interest terms.
For mortgage loans, the Company uses the secondary market rates in effect for loans that
have similar characteristics. The fair value of other fixed rate loans is calculated by
discounting scheduled cash flows through the anticipated maturities adjusted for
prepayment estimates. Adjustable interest rate loans are assumed to approximate fair
value because they generally reprice within the short term.
Fair values are adjusted for credit risk based on assessment of risk identified with specific
loans, and risk adjustments on the remaining portfolio based on credit loss experience.
Assumptions regarding credit risk are judgmentally determined using specific borrower
information, internal credit quality analysis, and historical information on segmented loan
categories for non-specific borrowers. Loans are considered a Level 1 classification if they
are held for sale to the secondary market, and a Level 3 if they are held in-house.
Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance – The carrying amount of bank-owned life
insurance is based on information received from the insurance carriers indicating the
financial performance of the policies and the amount the Company would receive should
the policies be surrendered. This is considered a Level 2 classification.
Deposits – The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as checking,
passbook, and money market, is equal to the amount payable on demand. The fair value
of time certificates of deposit is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.
The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar
maturities. Deposits are considered a Level 2 classification.
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Advances from FHLB and Subordinated Debentures – The fair value of the Company's
debentures and advances are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the
interest rate that would be effective December 31, 2017, if the borrowings repriced
according to their stated terms. The company’s FHLB advances are considered a Level 2
classification.
Off-balance-sheet Instruments – Fair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-related
financial instruments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the
counterparties' credit standing. The fair value of these financial instruments is
considered insignificant. Additionally, these financial instruments have no carrying
value. The company’s off-balance sheet instruments are considered a Level 2
classification.

Note 15: Commitments and Credit Risk
The Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk
in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These
financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit.
Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk
in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated statements of financial condition.
The Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk
in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These
financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit.
Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk
in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated statements of financial condition.

Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit

Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit

Variable Rate
$
95,651
-

2017
Fixed Rate
$
38,909
7,059

Variable Rate
$
74,028
-

2016
Fixed Rate
$
27,502
5,383

$

Total
134,560
7,059

$

Total
101,530
5,383
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is
no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
The commitments for equity lines of credit may expire without being drawn upon.
Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the
Company, is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer.
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are
primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. Essentially all
letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year. The credit risk involved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities
to customers. The Company generally holds collateral supporting those commitments if
deemed necessary.
The Company has no other off-balance-sheet arrangements or transactions with
unconsolidated, special purpose entities that would expose the Company to liability that
is not reflected on the face of the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 16: Business Combinations and Divestitures
Effective September 1, 2017, the Company acquired a branch in Marble Falls, Texas
from Independent Bank Group, Inc. in an all-cash transaction. The acquisition expanded
the Company’s market in the Hill Country, and further diversified the Company’s loan,
customer, and deposit base.

Assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Premises and equipment
Intangible asset (core deposit intangible)
Other
Liabilities assumed:
Deposits
Other
Fair value of net assets acquired
Consideration Transferred
Goodwill

$

98
5,732
48
426
16
6,320

$
$

17,502
34
17,536

$

(11,216)
(11,216)
-
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Note 17: Intangible Assets
The intangible asset consists of the following:

2017

Core deposit intangible
Beginning balance
Acquired intangible
Amortization of intangible
Ending Balance

$

426
(20)
406

$

The acquired intangible asset is being amortized utilizing a straight-line method over its estimated
useful life, 7 years. The future amortization schedule for the Company’s intangible assets is as
follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

61
61
61
61
61
101
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Note 18: Earnings per Share
The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow:
2017

2016

Basic
Net income to common stockholders
Common shares outstanding
Basic earnings per common share

8,208
10,325,955
$
0.79

7,992
9,505,361
$
0.84

Diluted
Net income to common stockholders

$

$

$

8,208

$

7,992

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Dilutive effects of:
Assumed exercises of stock options

10,325,955

9,505,361

48

73

Average shares and dilutive potential common shares

10,326,003

9,505,434

Diluted earnings per common share

$

0.79

$

0.84
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